
 
 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Plot Plan and Written Description: 145 Sumac Street 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Plot Plan: 145 Sumac Street  



 
 

Written Description: 145 Sumac Street 
Deed Description: 

[145 Sumac] ALL THAT CERTAIN lot or piece of ground (being composed of the whole of lots numbered 
73 and 74 on a certain plan of lots laid out for William Camac) SITUATE on the Northwesterly side of 
Sumac Street (fifty feet wide) at the distance of eighty four feet Northeastwardly from the Northeasterly 
side of Manayunk Avenue (fifty feet wide) in the Twenty first Ward of the City of Philadelphia aforesaid.  

CONTAINING in front or breadth on the said Sumac Street thirty eight feet and ten inches each lot being 
nineteen feet and five inches and extending of that width in length or depth Northeastwardly between 
parallel lines at right angles to said Sumac Street ninety six feet to ground of William Camac now of said 
James Z. Holt. 

BOUNDED Northeastwardly by ground now the aid Charles W. Klauder, Northwestwardly by ground late 
of William Camac now or said James Z. Holt, Southwestwardly by ground now or late of James Silbald 
and Southeastwardly by Sumac Street aforesaid. 

ALSO ALL THAT CERTAIN lot or piece of ground with the three story brick tenement and other 
improvements thereon erected.  

SITUATE on the Northwesterly side of Sumac Street (fifty feet wide) at the distance of one hundred and 
twenty two feet ten inches Northeastwardly from the Northeasterly side of Manayunk Avenue (fifty feet 
wide) in Manayunk in the Twenty first·Ward of the City of Philadelphia aforesaid. 

CONTAINING in front or breadth on the said Sumac Street thirty eight feet eleven inches and extending 
of that width in length or depth Northwestwardly between parallel lines at right angles to said Sumac 
Street ninety six feet. 

BOUNDED Southwestwardly by ground now or late of William Camac Northwestwardly by ground 
intended to be granted to the said James Z. Holt, Northeastwardly by ground now or late of Thomas N. 
Allison, and Southeastwardly by Sumac Street aforesaid. 

[150 Kalos] ALSO ALL THAT CERTAIN five contiguous lots with the buildings and improvements thereon 
erected on pieces of ground. 

SITUATE on the Southeasterly side of Kalos (formerly Woodvale Street) in the Twenty first Ward of the 
City of Philadelphia (being lots numbered 59, 60, 61,62 and 63 on a certain plan of lots laid out for the 
said William Camac by John H. Levering Esq. Surveyor of the Eighth Survey District March 20, 1883). 

BEGINNING at the distance of eighty four feet Northeastwardly from Manayunk Avenue.  

CONTAINING together in front or breadth on said Kalos Street eighty four feet four inches (the two 
Southwestern most lots each being sixteen feet two inches in breadth and the three other lots being 
sixteen feet) and extending Southeastwardly of that width between parallel lines at right angles to said 
Kalos Street eighty four feet. 

BOUNDED Northeastwardly, Southeastwardly and Southwestwardly by other ground now or late of the 
said William Camac and Northwestwardly by Kalos Street aforesaid.  

BEING premises No. 145 Sumac Street and 150 Kalos Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19128. 

BEING Parcel N.umber: 213024700 (145 Sumac Street) and 213029500 (150 Kalos Street) 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Physical Description: 145 Sumac Street 
 

 

 

 

 



 

Physical Description: 145 Sumac Street 
Prepared by: Jeffrey Allegretti 

6. Description 
The Holt House (a) is a red brick Queen Anne twin house located at 145 

Sumac Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, with characteristic Eastlake styling. 
The house is a fine example of the Queen Anne style with a 
roof of irregular shape, usually with a dominant front -facing gable; 

devises used to avoid a smooth-walled appearance; 
asymmetrical facade with partial or full -width porch which is usually one story 
high and extending along one or both side walls. 1 The three-story building is 
three bays wide and five bays deep (b). The gabled roof is connected to an 
identical twin house at the east (147 Sumac Street , which will be nominated 
separately).  The house was built in 1882.  

The asymmetrical, south-facing facade is comprised of hard-fired red 

extending from the ridge above the third floor to the porch roof at the first 
floor with a hip roof structure on a projecting wing at the rear on the west side 
of the house.  The front facade is adorned with an ornate bracketed cornice 
typical of the Queen Anne style, with decorative eave returns just below the 
gabled third facade. The gable contains decorative wood elements below and 
along the eave. A wrap around porch, also typical of the Queen Anne style,  
extends from the front steps to the front entry at the projected south wing. The 
double wood doors carved in the Eastlake geometric style are varnished. The 
windows are white vinyl replacement windows with painted wood trim. The 
original wood windows, with classic Queen Anne upper sashes comprised of 

-
as shown at left in a Google street view, dated July 2012, have been retained 
and are stored in the basement (c).  

Basement and First Story 

 The basement and first floors are faced in red brick, with a schist 
foundation and stone water table at the first floor line. A brick chimney projects 
from the roof just below the main ridge. The double hung windows are set into 
the brick field with stone lintels and sills framed with painted wood molding.  
The main front facade windows are paired with the first floor aligns directly 
with those of the basement windows below. 

entirely of a porch beneath a broad, shallow sloped roof that completes the 
gable roof line. The outer edge of the porch roof is supported by carved wood 
double post elements, bearing on brick columns. The porch area itself is L-
shaped with the eastern end serving as the main entry to the house, and 
western end leading northward to a windowed wall. Directly above the doors is 
a large transom composed in the same Queen Anne style as the upper sashes 
(d).  

																																																													
1 McAlester, Virginia and Lee, Field Guide to American Houses, New York: Knopf, 1984. Cited in Illustrated Survey 
Manual and Guide to Architectural Styles, A Publication of the Preservation Alliance for Greater Philadelphia, 
Prepared by the Preservation Design Partnership, http://www.preservationalliance.com/files/Archstyles.pdf, 

  

Figure	a 

Figure	c 

Figure	b 

Figure	d 



Second and Third Stories 

The main facade at the second and third floor is two bays wide on the 
second floor with the third floor window centered in the main gable wall. The 
facade is faced in thinly mortared brick, in a running-bond pattern. The eaves 
along the main south-facing facade are embellished with vertical geometric 
wood decorative trim boards with ornately carved eave returns supported with 
wood brackets (e).  

The facade is extended by a projection in the west elevation that 
continues the gable roof line and maintains the plane of the recessed front 

west wall projection, two bays wide by two stories high, with one window on each of the first and 
second floor of south (front facing walls) in vertical alignment. (f) 

The windows of the second and third stories follow a similar pattern as on the floors below. 
They are white vinyl replacement windows, but the original double-hung Queen Anne windows, 
have been preserved in the basement. The front window on the third story is shorter than those 
on the second story, which are slightly shorter than those on the first story. All of the windows 
have stone sills and lintels. 

West Elevation 

The West elevation (f -
south axis; it is four bays wide by two stories, with a single third 
floor dormer window. The elements of this elevation are the 
single bay return wall from the main facade - comprised of a 
brick first floor and steep sloped roof forming the second and 
third floor with a solitary dormer window on third floor - and 
three separate building projections: 1. The main entrance and 
stair hall are capped by a steep roofline with a singular window 
at the third floor dormer; 2. A two bay by two story hipped roof 
center core element, and 3. A two-bay, two story rear section.  

The west elevation projections and the narrow front facade create an L -shaped interior 
plan, with large, three-sided rooms at the center core. And a broader rear facade than is at the 
front (h). The west elevation is composed of the same red brick facing as is the front facade, with 

the same double hung window elements with stone sills and lintels and 
painted wood moldings. 

North Elevation 

The North elevation is the rear elevation.  It is comprised of a brick-
faced, hipped-roof projection two bays wide by two stories high, creating 

st gable extension projection (g).  

Interior 

The west side entrance creates a grand center hall with switchback stairs, 
in varnished wood carved in the Eastlake style (h).  The center parlor 
features an original mantelpiece with inset tiles with a center tile 
depicting a scene of the Wissahickon.  Restorable plaster moldings exist in 
most first floor rooms.  10ft high pocket doors separate the central hall 
from the parlor.  These doors, and most still in place, are carved in the 
distinctive Eastlake style. Nearly all window and door trim is of the period  
(see Photos section for interior and exterior details).  

Figure	e 

Figure	g 

Figure	h 

Figure	f 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Statement of Significance: 145 Sumac Street 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Statement of Significance: 145 Sumac Street 
Prepared by: Jeffrey Allegretti  

7. Significance 

The James Z. Holt House at 145 Sumac Street is significant as an historic building in Philadelphia 
and should be listed individually on the Philadelphia Register of Historic Places, classifying significant 
historic buildings and structures of the Philadelphia Historic Preservation Ordinance, Section 14-1004(1) 
of the Philadelphia Code, by Criteria A, D, and H. 

For Criterion A
(Manayunk textile mills) and is associated with an important individual, Manayunk mill owner James Z. 
Holt, son of Edward Holt, who was among the first Manayunk Mill owners. It was second-generation mill 
owners, like James Holt and Wilde mill owners, the brothers John and Thomas Wilde, who provided much 
of the 
Wissahickon Creek. The Holt House was among the first grand homes built in Wissahickon during this 
Victorian era period of development.  

For Criterion D the Holt House reflects an extraordinary example of Eastlake Victorian styling, 
with trim ornaments, spindles and door carvings with geometric patterns and incised lines.  It is only one 
of a few remaining examples in Wissahickon, a neighborhood developed when Queen Anne style was in 
vogue, with no other example of the particular steep slope roof styling exhibited by the Holt House.   

For Criterion H, the Holt House is an established visual feature in the neighborhood and for the 
community, not only for its architectural character, but for the dominant streetscape offered by its ample 
grounds, especially when combined with its adjoining twin at 147 Sumac Street, together occupying 
nearly three-quarters of an acre of ground in this otherwise densely developed urban neighborhood. 

development (Manayunk Mills and the development impetus for mill-owner housing) 
and is associated with important individuals; James Z. Holt, Manayunk mill owner. 

 and 
th century, City 

upply, including and especially the Schuylkill River.  With the 
creation of the Fairmount Water Works in 1815 and the spillway in 1822, what remained was to 

 City 
acquired the land that directly adjoined the Schuylkill River and sought to prevent the growth of 
industry along its banks.  At the same time, the Schuylkill Navigation Company constructed Flat Rock 
Dam above the borough of Manayunk and created the M
center to the coal fields in northern Pennsylvania.  The Schuylkill Navigation Company was also in the 
business of selling water power.  By 1821, three mills had begun operation in Manayunk; one making 
cotton, 

2 The threat of the loss of navigation and 
o great, 

that the industrialists upstream commissioned an engineering study to demonstrate that it would be 
possible to build a canal that by-passed the Schuylkill, not for navigation, but to bring fresh water to 
the Water Works from upstream of the intended new polluting industry on the river. That canal would 

																																																													
2 Elk, Sara Jane, Workshop of the World Press, 1990; adapted for the internet in 2007, John R. Bowie, A.I.A., 
Managing Editor http://www.workshopoftheworld.com/manayunk/manayunk.html (hereafter cited as 

 



3  Surely, if this water diversion plan had 
succeeded and the Schuylkill River below East Falls had become industrialized, the prospects for the 
Wissahickon watershed would have been likewise dim, and with it the prospects for the development 
of Wissahickon as a bucolic residential retreat for mill owners and the new gentry class.  

all mill owners and spurring the development of housing up the slopes of Manayunk to the ridge. But 

switched from cotton to a blend of cotton and wool yarns, pure wool yarns and a variety of woven 

(Workshop of the World). 

The Holt family was early to this new industry. James Zell Edward Holt,4 made 
knit underwear for Union Soldiers during the Civil War and, along with other significant Manayunk mill 
owners John and James Dobson, Sevill Schofield, James Lord, Jr., and J.B. Winpenny, he became 
wealthy as a result (Workshop). In addition to the Pennsylvanian Knitting Company,  his mill for woolen 
knits,5 Edward and John Laycock, owned the 6  
He was a founding member of the American Wool Manufacturers Association, created at the close of 
1864, months before the end of the Civil War, and he remained active until his death in 1872.7  Edward 
Holt was also part of the founding directorate of the Manayunk National Bank, which became an 
important source of capital for the expansion of Manayunk and the development of Wissahickon.8  

only son James was born in 1861 and, when of age, he followed 
becoming an owner of the Baker, Holt & Co. mill, along with Alfred T. Baker.  Baker, Holt & Co. was 
housed on the third floor of the 
former Ripka mills in Manayunk. 
Baker, Holt & Co. was a plush mill, 
specializing in the yarn used in the 
manufacture of carpet.9  According 
to the National Park Service 
National Register of Historic Places 
Registration Form for the John 

manufacture led Philadelphia's 
textile industry during the late 19th 
and early 20th centuries. Manayunk 
contained over half of the city's 
carpet yarn mills which supplied the 
weaving industry; most of these 
																																																													
3 Thoma

 
4  
5 Gazetteer of the manufactures and manufacturing towns of the United States, J.M. Bradstreet & So 
6 Mcelroys Philadelphia City Directory 1864, p. 420; http://www.mocavo.com/Mcelroys-Philadelphia-City-
Directory-1864-Volume-1864/377356/504  
7 The Fleece and the Loom: an address before the National Association of Wool Manufacturers, John J. Hayes, Press 
of John Wilson and Sons, Boston, 1865; p 79.  
8 History of the Philadelphia Stock Exchange, Banks and Banking Interests, Andrew Wallace Barnes, Ed., George F. 
Lasher Press, Philadelphia, 1911. p 83. 
9 Historical and Commercial Philadelphia, 2nd ed., New York, 1892, p. 
https://openlibrary.org/books/OL23662324M/Historical_and_commercial_Philadelphia_handsomely_illustrated   

Ripka Mill, which housed Baker, Holt  & Co. 



companies were small, family- 10 Baker, Holt & Co. was just such a small business, 
but at least in 1892, i
Baker, Holt & Co. had just made an order for 4 additional plush looms.11 Alfred T. Baker, went on to 
become an innovator and pa ethods and apparatus for 
beaming warp a recognized pioneer of velvets, velour and Mohair used in the upholstery of 
furniture of the period.12 By the beginning of the 20th century, the once-largest in the US Ripka mill, 

 
expansion of those facilities in the first decades of the 20th century.  

As mill expansion proceeded apace in Manayunk in the second half of the 19th century, 
workforce housing was being developed along the streets rising from the river valley to the ridge, and 
along newly created terraced streets perpendicular to the up-down streets. A few notable mansions 
for the Manayunk mill owners and other wealthy Manayunk business owners were created on 
perched openings in Manayunk proper, but the new generation of wealthy mill owners created more 
of a demand for elegant homes on ample lots than the built environment could provide.  Beginning in 
the late 1870s, land owned by prominent families, notably Camac, Dobson, Salaignac and Wetherill, 
along the Wissahickon C  began to be subdivided into generously-
sized building lots to accommodate the demand for grand single detached and semi-detached homes 
with ample side and rear yards.  This area was called by the real estate marketers of the time 

 

The maps below illustrate this rapid transformation of Wissahickon from 1862, when it was 
virtually undeveloped, to 1895, when nearly all of the largest parcels had been built on, creating a unique 
park side Victorian wonderland. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

186213      189514 

																																																													
10 National Register of Historic Places Nomination, John Wilde & Brother, Inc., p. 10.  NPS, Wilde 
Mill Registration  
11 , April 9, 1892,Vol XV, No. 371 
12  , Google books 
references to Alfred T. Baker patents. http://www.google.com/patents/US1270229  
13 1862 Philadelphia Atlas, Samuel L. Smedley, , http://www.philageohistory.org/tiles/viewer/ 
14 1895 Philadelphia Atlas, G. W. Bromley, http://www.philageohistory.org/tiles/viewer/ 



This 15 showing that development was nearly 
completed by then, with the Holt House (red) enlarged beside it: 

 

 

 

 

Wissahickon was especially attractive to the younger set of mill owners.  In 1891, Brothers John 
and Thomas Wilde, who had just opened their new mill on Cresson Street directly adjacent to 

 in April and May of 1886, 
Mary B. Holt, purchased two parcels on which the house at 145 Sumac Street and its adjacent side yard 
are located. In April of 1886, James purchased 150 Kalos Street from prominent Philadelphian, Dr. 
William Camac, the founding father of the Philadelphia Zoo, containing 5 buildable parcels that 
abutted the rear of the Sumac Street parcels, which the Holts used for a rear yard/garden and 
carriage house. The combined group of parcels have been in continuous use and occupied as a single 

 

The parcel on which the Holt House sits was sold by Dr. Camac to mortgage financier and real 
estate broker Thomas N. Allison16 as a combined parcel with 147 Sumac  the deed indicates 97 feet of 

this purchase, Allison subdivided the parcel, leaving 58 feet for 147 Sumac, where was to live, and 38 feet 
for 145, selling the smaller parcel to John W. Geton.  Geton then sold the parcel to Charles W. Klauder, a 
director, with James Holt, of the Manayunk Trust Company, in October of 1885, who then sold it to Mary 
Holt in April of 1886. The Plan Registry Page showing these transactions is provided with an explanatory 
narrative in the Appendix. 

We can be sure that the s. 
While we were not able to locate specific construction documents for this parcel, we were able to 
establish the following: The Holt House, and the essentially identical adjoining home at 147, are shown 
on G.M. Hopkins 1884 Atlas of the 21st Ward (provided in Appendix).  The deed between Dr. William 
Camac and Thomas N. Allison for 147 Sumac Street, dated November 1882, indicates that there were 
improvements on the parcel (provided in the Appendix).  Again, this deed appears to be for both 
parcels, which would later be called 145 and 147 Sumac Street.  Therefore, it would be reasonable to 

																																																													
15 Birds eye view of Manayunk, Wissahickon=Roxborough from West Laurel Hill Cemetery, Philadelphia, 
Pennsylvania 1907. Drawn by T. M. Fowler. Library of Congress, http://www.loc.gov/item/76693090/  
16 Thomas Allison abruptly fled for Mexico in 1892 after it was discovered that his firm, Thomas N. Allison & Bro., 
Manayunk conveyancers had defrauded mortgage borrowers  by pocketing the principal from their payments to 
the lender. He was living at 147 Sumac at the time. Philadelphia Times, 1/16/1882, p 1; Philadelphia Times, 
5/17/1893, p 1. 



conclude that the home was built at around 1882.  

The James and Mary Holt were among the earliest to invest in this new development in 
Wissahickon, as the 1884 Hopkins Atlas shows.  However, in two short decades, Wissahickon would 
become nearly fully developed as it was seen to be a highly desirable place to live, with proximity 
to the Wissahickon Valley, tree-lined streets, new sewers and water services, and grand homes in 
high Victorian styling. They raised their five children here, and, according to their death 

at which point Mary went to 
live with her daughter Mildred in Osborn, PA, where she died the following year. 17 

Mary and Ja society pages, both at functions in 

The image below shows Mr. Holt and his wife on the grounds of the Raymond Hotel, in Eagles Mere PA, a 
popular ret 18  In addition to his mill ownership, Holt was an Officer 
and Trustee of the Manayunk Trust and the Manayunk Penny Savings bank (with Widener heir William. F. 
Dixon),19 a member of St. David's Episcopal Church, and an o 20  

The Holts at the Raymond Hotel in Eagles Mere, PA, 1895 (C.J. Hatch) 

 Mrs. Mary Holt (in dark dress)  James Z. Holt (in rear, closest)  

																																																													
17 See Death Certificates in Appendix.  
18 Hatch, C.J., Sullivan County, Arcadia Publishing, Charlottesville, 2009, p. 122 
19 The Times - Philadelphia, Sunday August 4, 1889, p. 14 
20 , p.  
http://archive.org/stream/clubmenofphilade00sher/clubmenofphilade00sher_djvu.txt  



Criterion D: The Holt House is a high style masonry Queen Anne home, with Eastlake 
elements in its exterior detailing and, especially, the wood carvings of the interior stair 
railings, casements and doors.  It is the last of its kind in Wissahickon, a neighborhood 
developed at the height of the popularity of this style. 

The Holt House, with its prominent front gable, steep sloped rooflines, bracketing and 
ornate eaves, well-illustrates the Queen Anne style of architecture in America.  Indeed, it is a 
textbook example of the type as described by Virginia and Lee McAlester in their Field Guide to 
American Houses with: 

1. teeply pitched 
roof  

2. ominant front-facing gable  
3. The existing and evident remnants of 

devises used to avoid 
a smooth-walled appearance  

4. symmetrical facade with partial or 
full-width porch which is usually one 
story high and extending along one or 
both side walls  

According to preservationist, Mark P. 
 Queen Anne style enjoyed popularity 

in this country for a relatively short period of 
time. Introduced in 1874, it dominated American 
domestic architecture from roughly 1880 to 1900, and was fully supplanted by 21 Other 
than the Holt House, none remain in Wissahickon.   

Historical Architecture in 
Philadelphia: East Falls, Manayunk, and Roxborough22  (Note: The address provided above 
by Minardi for the Holt house and its adjoined twin is incorrect). 

With the unchecked demolition of large Wissahickon homes in the latter part of the 20th 
century and in the first decades of the 21st century, for repurposing as development sites for 
multiple attached homes, the Holt House is a rare vestige of 

 

significance for its Queen Anne style, it is 
uniquely of the place in which it was built 

 Wissahickon.  Its owners clearly 
embraced this aspect of the home when 
they chose to commission a painted tile 
inset into the main parlor mantelpiece, 
depicting a scene from the Wissahickon 
Valley.  

																																																													
21 Flood, Mark P., How to Nominate an Individual Building, Structure, Site or Object to the Philadelphia Register of 
Historic Places, A Publication of the Preservation Alliance for Greater Philadelphia, 2007, p. 31 
22 Minardi, Joseph, Historical Architecture in Philadelphia: East Falls, Manayunk, and Roxborough, Schiffer 
Publishing, Ltd., 2014  



Criterion H, the Holt House is an established visual feature in the neighborhood and for 
the community. 

145 Sumac Street and its twin at 147 Sumac have been an impressive and dominant feature of the 
architectural and historical milieu of Wissahickon for more than 130 years. Their unique architectural 
styling combined with their unusually large rear and side yards
historic Righter Street, provide them an extraordinarily prominent neighborhood context. One can get 
an immediate sense of their streetscape prominence by lookin
previous page; almost without knowing where these properties are, the eye is drawn to them, so central 
is their feature.  

 

 

In the modern era, their prominence is perhaps even more impressive.  The uniqueness of their 
setting and their placement within the fabric of this now densely developed neighborhood -- where 
many of the grand Victorians of the Holt House era have been converted to multifamily dwellings, with 
all of the deferred maintenance and inattention to architectural character that such a use sadly evokes -- 
is evident from the following aerials.  These homes always were and continue to this day to be the iconic 
representations of what is called to mind when one says, 









 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Photos: 145 Sumac Street 
 

 
 

 
 



Facade/South Elevation 
Kevin Hershey  Spark Photography 12/11/2104 
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North Elevation 
Kevin Hershey  Spark Photography 12/11/2104 
 



Stone Foundation and Water table 
Kevin Hershey  Spark Photography 12/11/2104 
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Front Porch post details  
Kevin Hershey  Spark Photography 12/11/2104 



Front Porch post details  
Kevin Hershey  Spark Photography 12/11/2104 

 



Front Porch post details 
Kevin Hershey  Spark Photography 12/11/2104 
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Interior Pocket Doors 
Bernardino Allegretti 10/3/2104 
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DEED  
and  

DEVELOPMENT 
INFORMATION 

 



Deed History  145 Sumac/150 Kalos: 

145 Sumac is comprised of two parcels with Sumac Street frontage: one on which the house was built, the other 
the side yard.  The following represents the transactions from the first transfers of both parcels by the original 

Holt in April and May of 1886.   

The Registry Plan below shows these parcels as Lots 3 and 5.  Lot 5 was originally part of Lot 4, which contained 
both houses at 145 Sumac and 147 Sumac, later subdivided by Allison. He kept and lived in 147, until his untimely 
expatriation to Mexico in 1892, and he sold the other to John W. Getson in November of 1882, two days after 
buying it from Dr. Camac, who then sold it to Charles W. Klaude -director at the Manayunk Trust 
Company, in October of 1885, who then sold it to mary Holt in April of 1886.   The sequence is as follows: 

Attached is the relevant portion of the Registry Plan 95-N5.  Lot 3 (side yard), Lot 4 (both 145 and 147 house lots), 5 
(subdivided from lot 4 to become 145), 31 (subdivided from lot 4 to become 147), plus the 5 Kalos Street parcels 
purchased by James Holt from Dr. Camac are all listed on this page.  This page contains the full history of this site.  

1. Thomas N. Allison purchased both 145 and 147 on November 2, 1882.  He then subdivided it into two 
parcel, one Lot 5, and the other Lot 31 on the same page.  

2. Lot 5 became 145 Sumac, and it is the lot on which the Holt House sits.   

The full names of the Owners and the dates for each of the transactions in the sequence of their occurrence: 

Lot 4: Former Owner:  William Camac (see subdivision note, referencing Lots 5 and 31) 

 Owner: Thomas N. Allison; Date of Deed November 2, 1882 

Lot 5:   

Former Owner:  Thomas N. Allison; Date of Deed November 2, 1882 (as part of Lot 4) 

Owner:  John W. Getson; Date of Deed: November 4, 1882 

Owner:  Charles W. Klauder; Date of Deed: October 15, 1884 

Owner: Mary A. Holt; Date of Deed: April 17, 1886 

Lot 31: Former Owner: Thomas Allison; Date of Deed November 2, 1882 

 Owner:  Joseph Allison; Date of Deed November 14, 1884 

  Owner:  Thomas N. Allison; Date of Deed march 23, 1885 

Lots 34, 36-39: Former Owner:  William Camac 

  Owner:   James Z Holt; Date of Deed April 28, 1986 
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The deed between Dr. William Camac and Thomas N. Allison for 147 Sumac Street, dated November 1882, 
indicating that there were improvements on the parcel, with southwest coordinates consistent with modern deed 
for 145 Sumac. JOD: 54; 373. Researched by John Charles Manton, B.S. in Ed.; M.S., 2015; 

 



 



  



  



THE HOLT FAMILY
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EDWARD HOLT 



 

 

From: Gazetteer of the manufactures and manufacturing towns of the United States, J.M. Bradstreet & Son, New 
York, 1866, p 155; Index 
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s Mill Ownership 
From: Mcelroys Philadelphia City Directory 1864, p. 420; 

 http://www.mocavo.com/Mcelroys-Philadelphia-City-Directory-1864-Volume-1864/377356/504 



Death Notice  Edward Holt 



 

 

Philadelphia Inquirer 2/5/1873 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

JAMES Z. and MARY B. HOLT



The Marriage Announcement for Edward Z. Holt and Mary Bromley, Philadelphia Inquirer, 1/14/1885. 

 
 
 



1900 Census Information, in which Mr. Holt says he is a baking powder manufacturer.  In 1910 he says he is a paper 
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List of Officers and Directors of the Manayunk Trust Company, showing Charles Klauder (from whom Mary Holt purchased 
both Sumac Street parcels) and James Z. Holt as officers.   (4th line from bottom) 

From: Historical and Commercial Philadelphia, 2nd ed., New York, 1892 
https://openlibrary.org/books/OL23662324M/Historical_and_commercial_Philadelphia_handsomely_illustrated 

 
Baker, Holt & Co. listed among Manayunk Plush Mills 

Source:  Annual Report of the Factory Inspector, 1895 

Listing Baker, Holt & Co as a 
plush mill with 12 looms: 
From: Textile World, Volume 
10; January 1896 



Baker, Holt & Co. in the News  

Manayunk mills:  

Source: Philadelphia Inquirer, 10/16/1893



Baker, Holt & Co. in the News 

Baker Holt cited in story on fire at the Ripka Mill, where their mill was housed. 

From:  New York Times, 4/13/1892: 

Baker, Holt & Co. order 4 new Plush looms  

From:  

 



James Z. Holt, Officer of the Manayunk Trust Company, with Charles Klauder, from whom Mary Holt purchased 
145 Kalos and its adjacent parcel, list as President 

From: The Fourth Annual Report of the [PA] Commissioner of Banking, 1898 



James Z. Holt   
List of Lay Deputies 

From: Journal of the Proceedings of the One Hundred and Fourteenth Convention of the Protestant Episcopal 
Church; Volumes 96-98 

 



  

From: Fashionable Visiting and Shopping 
Guide, and Philadelphia Club List, For the Year Ending March, 1899.  



 

 

 
 
Evening public ledger., September 16, 1919, Night Extra Financial, 
Page 11, Image 11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Philadelphia Inquirer, 8/7/1989 
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